
INDIANHEAD LAKE 

LAKE IMPROVEMENT BOARD 

HEARING OF PRACTICABILITY & REVIEW OF APPORTIONMENTS 

August 8, 2024 

A special meeting of the Indianhead Lake, Lake Improvement Board was held in the Douglass 

Township Hall, 3521 W McBrides Rd., Stanton, Michigan on the 8th day of August 2024, at 6:00 

p.m. 

The hearing of practicability was called to order by Jerry at 6:00 p.m. 

PRESENT: Todd Sattler – Treasurer/Drain Commissioner 

Jerry Cook – Chairperson 

Sara Stalbaum-Beechy – Douglass Township Representative 

Daniel Campos – Abutting Property Owner’s Representative 

Phil Kohn – Board of Commissioner’s Representative 

ABSENT: All Present 

ALSO  

PRESENT: Rick Buteyn & Luke Aaron – Progressive AE 

Anne Gaylord & Sara McGill – Progressive AE 

See attached for resident attendance sheet 

Jerry introduces the lake board members. 

A motion was made by Todd and seconded by Sara to accept the agenda as presented. Motion 

carried. 

A motion was made by Sara and seconded by Todd to accept the minutes of the July 30, 2024; 

meeting as presented. Motion carried. 

Todd explained the procedures of the Hearing of Practicability and the Review of 

Apportionments and the necessity of both hearings. 

Treasurer’s Report 

Todd provided a financial update to the Board and the residents, including a current balance of 

$19,068.10. 

Presentation 

Rick made a presentation to the Board and the residents. He provided a proposed budget of 

$13,500 annually with $6,500 for weed control, $6,000 in consultant fees and $1,000 for 

administration and contingency. He explained the roll as a consultant and PLM’s roll as the 



applicator. He explained the different types of weeds found in the lake and the herbicides that 

are used to treat them. 

The chairman opened the meeting up to the public for questions and comments. 

Bob Martinez asked about blue-green algae. 

Rick told the residents that they should call EGLE if they see blue-green algae on the lake. EGLE 

will work with the health department to sample the algae. 

Jim Roskamp asked about treatment of the north side of the lake. He stated that the lily pads 

just keep getting worse and more clogged with them. He added that the west side of the bay is 

full. 

Rick advised that lily pads can only be treated for navigational purposes and not for beech 

grooming. He added that he will speak with PLM regarding lily pads in that area.  

Bradley Wade stated that they did not receive notice of treatments of the lake and he has small 

children that use the lake. He would like to be notified.  

Rick noted that it was posted the same day as treatment and PLM is following EGLE 

requirements for posting. 

Bradley Wade said that is not enough notification and demanded that they notify sooner than is 

required so residents can plan accordingly. 

Debbie Gray asked if they treat the entire lake. 

Rick responded that the lake is treated based on the survey and the needs of the lake. Rick 

advised of treatment regulations and noted that they can only treat 100 ft of frontage. 

Debbie Gray added that the wants her property treated since she is paying for the treatment. 

Jack Zimmerman has 6 lakefront lots that never get treated. He added that PLM will not treat 

his area. He also asked if they are treating for lily pads. 

Rick explained that they cannot treat undeveloped areas, and it is considered undeveloped if 

there is no dock. 

Jack Zimmerman noted that his son had to use his boat to make a path through the lily pads 

which was difficult because the lake is shallow, and lily pads are overgrown. 

Rick stated that a lot of people like lily pads, so residents who want them treated should let the 

Board know so they can advise PLM. 

Todd added that the LIB is to treat nuisance natives and exotic invasive species. 



Jerry said that the lake needs to be dredged, but that cannot be handled by this board under 

the current scope of the project. 

Mark Hill noted that the bayous are overgrown and new residents are having issues getting out. 

He added that all sediments float to the east and are causing the depth to drop. He asked if 

there is anything available to treat the muck and silt. 

Rick responded that there are products available for us in Michigan, but studies haven’t shown 

a significant reduction in muck. He added that it shifts the sediment but does not actually break 

it down. 

Jim Roskamp added that there was sand at the bottom the lake 20 years ago. 

Rick said that he will look into solutions for the muck. 

Jerry asked about dredging permits.  

Rick advised that the permits for dredging come from EGLE, and they are very restrictive. 

Bradley Wade stated that he saw PLM spraying heavily in an area surrounded by lily pads even 

though they are not currently supposed it be treating lily pads.  

Rick said he will follow up with PLM. 

Bob Martinez asked if they only treat the shore. 

Rick advised that they treat up to 100 feet from the shoreline. 

Bradley Wade asked if there will be follow up from the Board regarding advanced noticing. 

Rick advised that Progressive provides surveys and treatment dates to the Board. 

Jerry added that they can notify Brad via email moving forward and he is happy to share 

treatment emails with anyone who wants them. 

Debbie Gray asked what they should do if a neighbor is clearing their parcel and dropping trees 

into the lake. 

Rick told Debbie that she should contact EGLE if people are dropping trees into the lake. 

There being no further questions or comments from the public, the Hearing of Practicability 

was closed by the chairman. 

The Resolution to Proceed with Improvements was offered for approval to the Lake Board. 







The hearing for the review of apportionments was called to order by Jerry. 

Presentation of Special Assessment Roll 

Todd presented the tax roll and explained the benefit factor used to determine the amount to 

assess each parcel. 

Jerry opened the hearing up for questions and comments from the public. 

Bradley Wade said that he has a lakefront and channel front parcel and asked if there was a 

way to lower his assessment on two parcels.  

Todd advised that he could combine his parcels if they are adjacent parcels in the same plat. 

Jack Zimmerman asked about a boat launch. 

Todd advised that the Board has discussed the possibility of adding funds for a boat launch at a 

future public hearing. 

Mark Hill offered his boat launch for residents to use. 

Many residents expressed concern that a boat launch would increase the number of 

nonresidents using the lake and that is not something they want. 

Jack Zimmerman noted that no one is controlling the bayou area, and many nonresidents are 

given permission to use the lake in the winter and they all leave their trash. 

Robb Urbanski said he is happy with the number of weeds in the lake but would like to see 

more focus on the algae. He also added that people need to clean up after themselves when 

they pulled their weeds. He also suggested that a Facebook page for the lake may help to keep 

residents informed. 

Bradley Wade noted that he had to call rescue services last winter for two nonresidents that 

were on the lake and needed help. 

There being no further questions or comments from the public on the Review of 

Apportionments, the hearing was closed by the chairman. 

The Resolution Confirming the Special Assessment Roll was offered for approval by the Lake 

Board. 









 There being no further business to come before the Lake Board, a motion was made by Todd 

and seconded by Sara to adjourn the meeting at 7:31 p.m. 

___________________________ 

Todd Sattler, Secretary/Treasurer 

Indianhead Lake, Lake Improvement Board 

Dated: August 8, 2024 

State of Michigan        } 

              } ss. 

County of Montcalm    } 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of the minutes of a meeting of 

the Indianhead Lake, Lake Improvement Board, Montcalm County, Michigan held on August 8, 

2024, and that said minutes are on file in the office on the Montcalm County Drain 

Commissioner and are available to the public. 

I further certify that notice of the meeting was posted at least 18 hours before the meeting at 

the Office of the Montcalm County Drain Commissioner, which is the principal office of the 

Indianhead, Lake Improvement Board and on the county website at https://mi-

montcalmcounty.civicplus.com/362/Lake-Improvement-Board-Meetings. 

______________________________ 

Todd Sattler 

Montcalm County Drain Commissioner 



INDIANHEAD LAKE 
LAKE IMPROVEMENT BOARD

PUBLIC HEARING 

August 8, 2024 
7:00 P.M. 

DOUGLASS TOWNSHIP HALL 
3521 W McBrides Rd. 

Stanton, Michigan 48888 

Agenda 

 Call to Order 
 Introduction of Board Members 
 Approval of Agenda 
 Approval of Minutes 

o July 30, 2024 
 Financial Update 
 Public Hearing of Practicability 

o Presentation of Proposed Program 2024 – 2029 
o Add any letters received 
o Public Comments/Questions 
o Resolutions to Proceed with Improvements 

 Review of Apportionments Hearing 
o Budget and Benefit Factors 
o Presentation of Special Assessment Roll 
o Public Comments/Questions 
o Resolution Confirming Special Assessment Roll 

 Adjourn 

If you cannot attend, please call 989-831-7322 at least two days prior to the meeting. 

Board Members: 
Jerry Cook – Chair 
Sara Stalbaum-Beechy - Douglass Township Representative 
Todd Sattler - Montcalm County Drain Commissioner 
Phil Kohn - Board of Commissioners Representative 
Daniel Campos - Abutting Property Owners Representative 



Date Vendor Description Check Expenses Revenue Balance

10/1/2019 Beginning Balance 13,556.66$  

10/10/2019 Progressive AE 4th Quarter Lake Consulting Fee 148811 1,375.00$  12,181.66$  

10/24/2019 PLM Lake & Land Management Invoice # 198053 Water Quality Sampling 149191 600.00$     11,581.66$  

1/6/2020 Progressive AE 1st Quarter Lake Consulting Fee 151213 1,375.00$  10,206.66$  

2/24/2020 PLM Lake & Land Management 2020 Permit Fee 151736 400.00$     9,806.66$    

3/30/2020 Progressive AE 2nd Quarter Lake Consulting Fee 152714 1,375.00$  8,431.66$    

4/20/2020 Ernie Combs Access to Indianhead Lake for Weed Control 152756 100.00$     8,331.66$    

5/31/2020 Moncalm County 2019 Tax Settlement 12,500.00$  20,831.66$  

6/3/2020 PLM Lake & Land Management Weed & Algae Treatment 154060 1,154.22$  19,677.44$  

7/2/2020 Progressive AE 3rd Quarter Lake Consulting Fee 154062 1,375.00$  18,302.44$  

7/16/2020 PLM Lake & Land Management Weed & Algae Treatment 154896 614.59$     17,687.85$  

9/30/2020 Moncalm County Allocations 348.36$     17,339.49$  

10/13/2020 Progressive AE 4th Quarter Lake Consulting Fee 155659 1,375.00$  15,964.49$  

10/27/2020 Spicer Group Fund Support 156014 50.00$       15,914.49$  

1/19/2021 Progressive AE 1st Quarter Lake Consulting Fee 157254 1,375.00$  14,539.49$  

2/22/2021 State of Michigan 2021 Permit Fee 158245 400.00$     14,139.49$  

4/8/2021 Progressive AE 2nd Quarter Lake Consulting Fee 158616 1,375.00$  12,764.49$  

4/26/2021 Ernie Combs Access to Indianhead Lake for Weed Control 158929 100.00$     12,664.49$  

3/31/2021 Indianhead Lake Interest Income 44.77$         12,709.26$  

4/30/2021 Montcalm County 2020 Delinquent Settlement 2,058.45$    14,767.71$  

5/1/2021 Montcalm County 2020 Collected Settlement 10,441.55$  25,209.26$  

6/22/2021 PLM Lake & Land Management 6/02/2021 Weed & Algae Treatment 160014 1,314.41$  23,894.85$  

7/6/2021 Progressive AE 3rd Quarter Lake Consulting Fee 160330 1,375.00$  22,519.85$  

7/29/2021 PLM Lake & Land Management 06/22/2021 Algae Treatment 160798 175.81$     22,344.04$  

9/16/2021 PLM Lake & Land Management 09/01/2021 Treatment 161675 953.52$     21,390.52$  

10/7/2021 Progressive AE 4th Quarter Lake Consulting Fee 162065 1,375.00$  20,015.52$  

1/20/2022 Progressive AE 1st Quarter Lake Consulting Fee 163988 1,375.00$  18,640.52$  

1/20/2022 PLM Lake & Land Management 2022 Permit Fee 163986 400.00$     18,240.52$  

4/7/2022 Progressive AE 2nd Quarter Lake Consulting Fee 165494 1,375.00$  16,865.52$  

4/28/2022 Ernie Combs Boat Launch 166012 100.00$     16,765.52$  

5/23/2022 Montcalm County 2021 Collected Settlement 10,545.10$  27,310.62$  

5/23/2022 Montcalm County 2021 Delinquent Settlement 1,954.90$    29,265.52$  

7/7/2022 Spicer Group Account Support 167408 32.80$       29,232.72$  

7/7/2022 Spicer Group Account Support 167408 41.75$       29,190.97$  

7/14/2022 Progressive AE 3rd Quarter Lake Consulting Fee 167583 1,375.00$  27,815.97$  

7/21/2022 PLM Lake & Land Management 05/18/2022 Algae Treatment 167632 1,500.60$  26,315.37$  

8/11/2022 PLM Lake & Land Management 07/11/2022 Algae Treatment 168143 496.59$     25,818.78$  

10/17/2022 Progressive AE 4th Quarter Lake Consulting Fee 169529 1,375.00$  24,443.78$  

1/19/2023 Progressive AE 1st Quarter Lake Consulting Fee 171352 1,375.00$  23,068.78$  

1/31/2023 Huntington Bank Interest Income 51.92$         23,120.70$  

2/28/2023 Huntington Bank Interest Income 87.19$         23,207.89$  

3/31/2023 Huntington Bank Interest Income 71.27$         23,279.16$  

2/28/2023 PLM Lake & Land Management 2023 Permit Fee 172282 875.00$     22,404.16$  

4/4/2023 Ernie Combs Boat Launch 172865 100.00$     22,304.16$  

4/20/2023 Progressive AE 2nd Quarter Lake Consulting Fee 173256 1,375.00$  20,929.16$  

4/30/2023 Huntington Bank Interest Income 65.77$         20,994.93$  

5/2/2023 Montcalm County 2022 Delinquent Settlement 1,269.23$    22,264.16$  

5/8/2023 Montcalm County 2022 Collected Settlement 7,230.77$    29,494.93$  

5/31/2023 Huntington Bank Interest Income 77.81$         29,572.74$  

5/16/2023 PLM Lake & Land Management Sonar Treatment 173915 2,857.50$  26,715.24$  

6/5/2023 PLM Lake & Land Management 05/24/2023 Sonar Treatment 174289 1,080.00$  25,635.24$  

6/30/2023 Huntington Bank Interest Income 82.74$         25,717.98$  

7/13/2023 PLM Lake & Land Management 06/16/2023 Algae Treatment 175093 1,100.00$  24,617.98$  

7/20/2023 Progressive AE 3rd Quarter Lake Consulting Fee 175147 1,375.00$  23,242.98$  

7/31/2023 Huntington Bank Interest Income 76.23$         23,319.21$  

8/10/2023 PLM Lake & Land Management 07/28/2023 Algae Treatment 175516 74.02$       23,245.19$  

8/31/2023 Huntington Bank Interest Income 76.56$         23,321.75$  

9/30/2023 Huntington Bank Interest Income 72.88$         23,394.63$  

10/19/2023 Progressive AE 4th Quarter Lake Consulting Fee 177051 1,375.00$  22,019.63$  

10/31/2023 Huntington Bank Interest Income 71.10$         22,090.73$  

11/30/2023 Huntington Bank Interest Income 68.13$         22,158.86$  

12/31/2023 Huntington Bank Interest Income 70.71$         22,229.57$  

1/16/2024 Progressive AE 1st Quarter Lake Consulting Fee 178927 1,375.00$  20,854.57$  

1/31/2024 Huntington Bank Interest Income 67.99$         20,922.56$  

2/29/2024 Huntington Bank Interest Income 62.69$         20,985.25$  

3/7/2024 PLM Lake & Land Management 2024 EGLE Permit Fee 179950 450.00$     20,535.25$  

Indianhead Lake Finance Sheet 2020 - 2024 (84022)
Thursday, August 8, 2024



3/31/2024 Huntington Bank Interest Income 70.01$         20,605.26$  

4/11/2024 Ernie Combs Boat Launch 180762 100.00$     20,505.26$  

4/11/2024 Progressive AE 2nd Quarter Lake Consulting Fee 180780 1,375.00$  19,130.26$  

4/30/2024 Huntington Bank Interest Income 63.63$         19,193.89$  

5/13/2024 Montcalm County 2023 Collected Settlement 3,984.25$    23,178.14$  

5/13/2024 Montcalm County 2023 Delinquent Settlement 1,015.75$    24,193.89$  

5/31/2024 Huntington Bank Interest Income 75.90$         24,269.79$  

6/30/2024 Huntington Bank Interest Income 90.75$         24,360.54$  

7/3/2024 Douglass Township Hall Rental & Deposit 182557 200.00$     24,160.54$  

7/11/2024 Progressive AE 3rd Quarter Lake Consulting Fee 182912 1,375.00$  22,785.54$  

7/11/2024 PLM Lake & Land Management 05/29/2024 Weed Treatment 182911 3,315.25$  19,470.29$  

7/31/2024 Huntington Bank Interest Income 68.23$         19,538.52$  

8/1/2024 Montcalm County Resident Notice Postage Costs 183226 71.07$       19,467.45$  

8/8/2024 View Newspaper Group (27737) Notice Publication TBD 399.35$     19,068.10$  

Remaining Balance 19,068.10$  






